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Request For Proposal (RFP) # FAS-3022

Addendum

Latest Update 07/2512


The following is additional information regarding RFP #FAS-3022, titled Bank Depository Services released on June 29, 2012.  The Proposal due date has been revised from August 8, 2012 @ 4:00 pm to August 17, 2012 @ 4:00 pm.  The due date for demonstrations is revised to the week of September 3, 2012 and Announcement of Successful Proposer week of September 10, 2012.    


This addendum is hereby made part of the RFP and therefore, the information contained herein shall be taken into consideration when preparing and submitting a proposal.   Vendors should review the Q&A carefully as some of the responses have been reworded/clarified.  These written Q&A's take precedence over any verbal Q&A.
From:  Carmalinda Vargas, Sr. Buyer
City of Seattle Purchasing
Phone:  206-615-1123; Fax 206-233-5155
Email Address:  Carmalinda.vargas@seattle.gov


	Item #
	Date Received
	Date Answered
	Vendor’s Question
	City’s Response
	RFP Additions/Revisions/
Deletions

	1 
	7/12/12
	7/12/12
	
	The City has revised its standard insurance coverage to include a Financial Institution Bond.
	DELETE in its entirety Attachment 1 – Insurance Requirements in the RFP and REPLACE with Attach 1A - Insurance Coverage and Bonds.  

ADD Financial Institution Bond, Standard Form 24.


[bookmark: _MON_1403612721]	


	


	


	2 
	7/12/12
	7/12/12
	
	The contract terms and conditions, Section 23 – Insurance has been revised to Section 23 - Insurance and Bonds.  
	Replace Contract Terms and Conditions (Attachment 2), SECTION 23 with the following language.  


[bookmark: _MON_1403614013]	



	3 
	7/9/12
	7/9/12
	
	
	Deletion:  Section 4 - Statement of Work – DELETE paragraph 4.10.1 in its entirety.  

The Bank must provide a $50 million line of credit, representing the estimated maximum amount of checks that can clear on a single day. In the event that the balance in the operating account remains negative at the end of the day, that balance will constitute a borrowing against this line-of-credit. RCW 43.09.2853 authorizes Cities to establish a line of credit.




Replace with:

0. The Bank must provide a line of credit representing the estimated maximum amount of checks that can clear on a single day (minimum $10 million). In the event that the balance in the operating account remains negative at the end of the day, that balance will constitute a borrowing against this line-of-credit. RCW 43.09.2853 authorizes Cities to establish a line of credit.
   

	4 
	7/9/12
	7/9/12
	
	
	Deletion:  Section 4 Statement of Work – DELETE the following in 4.16.1

4.16.1  The Bank must provide a nightly sweep into an authorized investment a repurchase agreement and the method for pricing as authorized by RCW 35.39 and 39.58




	5 
	7/13/12
	7/13/12
	A.  Pg 5 & 12 of the RFP:  The collection and deposits of parking meter money:  Is the process the same as it was years ago where the carts would go in a van and the van would go in a vault?    

B.  Is the definition of Downtown (SODO)

C. Is provisional credit weighed & provisional credits given, and is there a counting that takes place later?

D. On the activity price there is a bin charge of $160.  Is that for one or more bins?  

E. To confirm:  All the coin from the Parkion and the old fashion meters comes into a bin, the bin is dumped throughout the course of the day, the bin is weighed and credits are given.  
 
	A. Yes.  $3-$5 million dollars are collected in coin from parking meters then put in a van and taken to a collection site.  Brinks is currently the 3rd party.  


B. Yes


C. Yes. The coins are weighed and placed in a bin. 	

D. In a day’s activity, all coins fit into a bin. 

E. Yes
	

	6 
	7/13/12
	7/13/12
	A 	Regarding single head meters:  Will the City continue the use of these meters or will or is there a plan to reduce or purge the single head coin meters?  
B	Can you give a percentage of single head vs multi-use card meters?

	A. Although the single head meters are rapidly diminishing, it is uncertain if they will be completely eliminated.   

B. At this time, 95% of the spaces are multi card space meters and these meters accept coin.  

Coin also comes from the City’s kiosks.


	

	7 
	7/13/12
	7/13/12
	Pg 5 of the RFP references on in-house retail lockbox and they are also shown on some of the charts of accounts; Are those all internal in-house operations that the City of Seattle is performing themselves?


	Yes
	

	8 
	7/13/2012
	7/20/2012
	Would there be exception to amend the RFP as to consider banks currently with smaller capital structures in our state as calculated by the Washington PDPC?   
	Yes
	Delete the following:  Section 2 (Minimum Qualifications) item 2.6:  

The Financial Institution shall have a total capital structure of at least $450 million, (as calculated by the Washington Public Deposit Protection Commission), be able to support a deposit by the City in amounts up to $450 million, and daylight overdrafts up to $120 million. Proposing financial institutions must, at the time of submittal of a proposal, be in compliance with all applicable laws, rules, regulations, and ordinances of the City of Seattle, the State of Washington, and the United States, including the Washington State Public Deposit Protection Act (RCW 39.58).  

Replace with:

The Financial Institution shall have a minimum capital structure of at least $300 million, (as calculated by the Washington Public Deposit Protection Commission), be able to support a deposit by the City in amounts up to $450 million, and daylight overdrafts up to $120 million. Proposing financial institutions must, at the time of submittal of a proposal, be in compliance with all applicable laws, rules, regulations, and ordinances of the City of Seattle, the State of Washington, and the United States, including the Washington State Public Deposit Protection Act (RCW 39.58).  

Replace attachment 3 – Minimum qualification, in its entirety with Attachment 3A embedded below:





	9 
	7/13/12
	
	Minimum Qualifications 2.8 and Statement of Work 4.6 reference “availability of funds”, 

A	Is it just same day availability on 12th Federal District or is it on “all checks”?

B	Is it possible to get the dollar breakout (like an end point analysis or summary) to help figure out the float?


	A. Same day availability on funds drawn on 12th Federal District banks.

B. For 2012 Estimated total deposits are $1,100,000,000 of which $350,000,000 represents same day availability.  Estimated average daily deposit is $4,000,000 with $1,500,000 receiving same day availability.
	Delete the following:  Section 2 (Minimum Qualifications) item 2.8:  

The Financial Institution shall provide same day availability of deposited funds to the City of Seattle.

Replace With:

The Financial Institution shall provide same day availability of deposited funds drawn on banks within the 12th Federal District to the City of Seattle.

See item #8 for revised minimum qualifications, Attachment 3A.


	10 
	7/13/12
	7/13/12
	The score for Products and Services is weighted higher than the other criteria; is the City’s intent to have Products and Services weighted to correspond with the demonstration and that the City will want to see a live demonstration of tools, technology, etc?


	Yes
	Add:  Section 7 - Evaluation Process, Step 4 – Interviews, Demonstrations & Reference Checks

If, in the opinion of the City, the demonstrations, references or research do not support the responses provided in Section 6 Offer Sheet and Mandatory Submittals, the City may revise response scores.


	11 
	7/13/12
	7/13/12
	A.  Is there a mathematical process for pricing and fee section?

B. Will the scores for the other components listed in the Evaluation Criteria be scored and ranked by the evaluation committee, in which scores can range from the maximum amount of points to a lesser point value? 
 
	A.  Yes



B. Yes



	Add:  Section 7 - Evaluation Process, Step 3 – Proposal Evaluation – Pricing & Fees

As part of the mathematical formula, the City will consider the hard dollar transition costs as follows:
· Endorsement modifications (technical and mechanical): $7,500
· Interface modifications: $10,000
· Maintenance of incumbent bank for outstanding items: $5,400
· Stop payments for checks not cashed during transition period: $7,000

	12 
	7/13/12
	7/13/12
	Who is on the evaluation committee?
	There are designated committee groups for the following criteria:

1. Minimum Qualification – 2 Project Managers.
2. Management Response 4-5 members
3. Products and Services 4-5 members
4. Socially Responsible Banking 4-5 members
5. Security 1-2 members 
6. Pricing fees, mathematically calculated
7. Inclusion Plan.  3-4 (Purchasing) members 
8. Demonstration – all members of the evaluation teams.  


	

	13 
	7/13/12
	7/13/12
	Section 7 (Evaluation Process) Step#5  states …”may consider a combination of awards at the option of the City.”  Will the City be awarding to more than one Vendor?
	No.
	Delete the following:  Section 7 (Evaluation Process) Step#5   Selection:  

The City shall select the highest ranked Proposer for award., or may consider a combination of awards at the option of the City.

	14 
	7/13/12
	7/13/12
	Would the City rather see a redline markup of their Agreement or a separate document with suggested changes? 
	The City prefers a redline markup of the Agreement.
	

	15 
	7/13/12
	7/13/12
	Statement of Work 4.5 (ACH) & Pg 6 (electronic process): 

A. Can you provide the vendor(s) name that the City is using as a 3rd party vendor for electronic payment process?
	


A.  The City has issued an intent to award with a new vendor.  Upon completion of contract negotiations the City will release the Vendor’s name.  
	

	16 
	7/13/12
	7/13/12
	B	Will the 3rd party vendor pass along a file to the City’s particular institution in a specific file format (e.g. ACH transactions) or provide a net settlement to the financial institution?

C.	Is the volume information included in the attachments? 


	B. ACH will be handled differently than merchant.  Merchant will be the dollars we settled, and ACH has historically been the detail.  



C. Yes
	

	17 
	7/13/12
	7/13/12
	Section 4 Statement of Work   4.11 – Control Disbursement:  Is the City open to an in state disbursement or is the requirement to know all clearings first thing in the morning?
	We need to know the controlled disbursement amount by 7:00 AM PST; we are open to an in state disbursement if it meets this requirement.
	

	18 
	7/13/12
	7/13/12
	Can you tell us where the control disbursement location is and who is the provider?
	The current site is out of Ohio and the provider is Wells Fargo
	

	19 
	7/13/12
	7/13/12
	Section 4 Statement of Work   4.17 – ATM:  

A. Does Wells Fargo have an ATM in the City Building or at City Hall?
B. Does No fee mean no fee to the City for that ATM?



	


A. No.
B. It’s covered in the Products& Services attachment (5.11).  


	

	20 
	7/13/12
	7/13/12
	C. Is it the intent to have full service ATMs and not just cash only?


D.  What is the City’s interest?
	C. The City expects the Vendor to describe the level of service they will provide to the City.

D.  The City is interested in the most services the Bank can provide.
	

	21 
	7/13/12
	7/13/12
	Is there any information on restrictions that the City may have where the Bank can site an ATM in the City Building?

	As of right now there would not be any restriction on the location of an ATM in City Hall, provided the Mayor, City Counsel and FAS agreed with the location and it made sense logistically.

In the Seattle Municipal Tower (SMT), Key Bank has the exclusive right to have an ATM in the common areas of the building.  The SMCU machine was an exception agreed to by Key Bank.  An ATM may be placed in SMT when the Key Bank contract expires.

	

	22 
	7/13/12
	7/13/12
	Does the City have mobile banking service now?
	No.  
	

	23 
	7/13/12
	7/13/12
	Products and Services 4.1.23 – Mobile Reporting Services
	This is the direction the City is interested in and a direction the City would like to head toward.
	

	24 
	7/13/12
	7/13/12
	Products and Services Pg 25 #6. – Can you provide an estimate of the average dollar amount for those employees who still receive a paper check?
	For each individual check, the estimated dollar amount is $1700
	

	25 
	7/13/12
	7/13/12
	Does the City envision a policy or restriction that could eliminate paper checks, if a card product was available to the employees?
	There is no current policy in place.  
	

	26 
	7/13/12
	7/13/12
	Would it be possible to get the TMA codes for the pricing?
	Please see the embedded statement below for ARP codes.



	

	27
	07/13/2012
	7/20/2012
	Can the City provide the AFP/TMA codes for each of the line items on the Cost Proposal sheet?
	Please see response #26
	

	28
	07/13/2012
	7/20/2012
	ARP Statement - Please describe the information provided with the ARP Statement.  How is the statement delivered? 

	File uploads (Positive Payment) and downloads (Redeems) are done through WF’s CEO and SAFE which is an FTP process.  We have .BAT processes which manage file upload and downloads, Internet connection (CEO and SAFE), and archiving of data files.   

Please see document below for layout:





	

	29
	7/13/2012
	7/20/2012
	Payee Validation non-account holder - Please provide a description of what this line item represents.
	This is a check cashing fee for non customers.  Because we have Payee Validation there is no cost to the City or the non customers cashing their checks at Wells Fargo.  This notates how many non Wells Fargo customers cashed City of Seattle checks at WF.
	

	30
	7/13/2012
	7/20/2012
	Debits Posted - Are these items paper based transactions (i.e. checks) or electronic? 

	All debit items, other than checks.  For example wires and ACH.
	

	31
	7/13/2012
	7/20/2012
	Credits Posted - Are these items paper based transactions (i.e. deposits) or electronic? 

	These are paper based deposits that are processed at Wells Fargo branches – charge is per deposit slip.
	

	32
	7/13/2012
	7/20/2012
	DDA Statement Frequent Cycle - How often are statements generated and how many accounts are set up for this schedule? 

	Statements are generated monthly and we have approximately 20 accounts.
	

	33
	7/13/2012
	7/20/2012
	DDA Statement Special Instruction - What type of special instructions are in place?  Does this refer to a special statement cut-off schedule? 

	The special  instructions include who is to receive the statements
	

	34
	7/13/2012
	7/20/2012
	Cash Vault Currency/Coin Deposited - The current price is reflected as $0.00040.  Is this charge per $100 or per $1000?  Is 2,800,000 the actual total dollar amount of currency deposited? 

	The current price is as stated - $0.00040 (4 cents per $1,000.00), the approximate monthly average total dollar amount of currency deposited is $2,800,000.00.



	

	35
	7/13/2012
	7/20/2012
	Cash Vault Currency Furnished Non-Standard - How many non-standard orders were placed? 

	The billing for this service is based on order amount, not orders placed so we do not have that information.
	

	36
	7/13/2012
	7/20/2012
	Cash Vault Currency Furnished - How many orders were placed? 

	The billing for this service is based on order amount, not orders placed so this information is unavailable.  
	

	37
	7/13/2012
	7/20/2012
	Cash Vault Coin Deposit Bin - Please provide a description of what this line item represents. How are these processed? Does Brinks deliver the Bins of coin to the bank in the actual bins? If so, how big are they? Are they currently lifted and dumped into a coin counter?
	All collected coin is transported to Brinks and dumped by Collectors into a bin that’s approximately 3’X3’X4’.  The bin is emptied daily by Brinks onto a coin counter. Brinks then sends the totals electronically to the bank followed by a paper receipt by US mail. 

	

	38
	7/13/2012
	7/20/2012
	Currency Order Branch/Store - The current price is reflected as $0.00050.  Is this charge per $100 or per $1000? Is 1,500 the actual total dollar amount of currency ordered?
	The current price is as stated - $0.00050 (5 cents per $1,000.00).  The $1,500.00 is the approximate monthly average total dollar amount of the Currency Order Branch/Store.
	

	39
	7/13/2012
	7/20/2012
	Web Return Item Base - Does the City have the ability to view returned deposited checks and apply a decision to redeposit or allow to charge back?
	The City of Seattle is currently not using that functionality
	

	40
	7/13/2012
	7/20/2012
	ARP Serial Sort - Volume shows as 5.  Is this the number of accounts set up for serial sort?  How many accounts are set up for serial sorting? How many total checks are sorted in serial number order on average?
	ARP Serial Sort Monthly Base”  is the number of ACCOUNTS (on ARP) that are having the cancelled checks sorted by sequence and returned to the City on a monthly basis.  The City has 1 account  set up for this.
“ARP Serial Sort – Item” is the number of CANCELLED CHECKS from a ARP account that are sort by sequence and returned to the City in the monthly statement.  there were 3 checks sorted in June.
“DDA Serial Sort Monthly Base” is the same as above but these accounts are not on ARP, but the checks are still being sorted.  Currently 4 accounts are set up for this.
“DDA Serial Sort – Item” is the same as above, but the cancelled checks are from an account that are not on ARP.  Tied to the 4 accounts above.  In June there were 261 items sorted between those 4 accounts.

For June the City had 5 accounts set up for serial sort – total checks sorted was 264
	

	41
	7/13/2012
	7/20/2012
	Positive Pay Base - Is this the monthly charge for Positive Pay services?  How many accounts are set up for Positive Pay? 
Image Search Item - Is this a per item charge for each search performed to find an image of a posted check?
	This is the monthly base fee and we currently have 3 accounts on positive pay.
	

	42
	7/13/2012
	7/20/2012
	Image Search Item - Is this a per item charge for each search performed to find an image of a posted check?
	This is a per item fee for each search.
	

	43
	7/13/2012
	7/20/2012
	Who is the Web Payment Provider? 

	FIS Global is the current e-payment provider.  The City is in the process of negotiating a contract with a new e-payment vendor. We will release the vendor name when negotiations are complete.

	

	44
	7/13/2012
	7/20/2012
	Do City staff take deposits to the bank themselves at the various locations, or are they all collected to a central point and delivered to the vault via armored car?

	Deposit handling varies by department.  Some departments take deposits to the bank themselves, some departments use an armored car to pick up deposits at various locations, some departments bring deposits to treasury to be deposited (delivered to the vault via armored car)

	

	45
	7/13/2012
	7/20/2012
	The City has requested Guaranteed ACH settlement. What does the word "guarantee" imply according to the City? 

	The City is interested in the cut off times for guaranteeing same day next day, and two day settlement to the recipient’s bank for city initiated ACH transactions.  Please provide this information in Products & Services Response question 3.2.6 along with any situations that would impact the guaranteed settlement timing, 
	

	46
	7/13/2012
	7/20/2012
	Is the City currently using a repurchase agreement sweep? If so, how is the rate determined? Is the rate tied to an index? 

	Yes, we are currently using a repurchase agreement sweep and the rate is not tied to an index.  We do not know how the rate is determined.
	

	47
	7/16/2012
	7/20/2012
	Does the City plan to MANDATE payroll cards for employees not on traditional direct deposit?  What is the estimate of the # of payroll cards? 

	The City does not plan to mandate payroll cards.  There are approximately 1,200 employees not on direct deposit.
	

	48
	7/16/2012
	7/20/2012
	Retirement is processed on the 1st and 15th for approximately 7,000 retirees.  How many are paid via paper check?  Will all check payments move to prepaid cards?
	The City does not plan to mandate payroll cards for retirees.  There are approximately 500 retirees not on direct deposit.

	

	49
	7/16/2012
	7/20/2012
	Can the City please provide the potential # / $ of prepaid card's to be used for Relocation Expenses? 

	Annual volume is approximately 50 per year, average amount is $3,000. 

	

	50
	7/16/2012
	7/20/2012
	Dep insurance – FDIC insurance yes?
	Please refer to question #26 above for a sample statement with AFP codes.

	

	51
	7/16/2012
	7/20/2012
	Domestic Collection No docs – Can they provide an AFP code or definition?
	Please refer to question# 26 above for a sample statement with AFP codes.
	

	52
	7/16/2012
	7/20/2012
	Tax Access Code - Can they provide an AFP code or definition?
	Please refer to question #26 above for a sample statement with AFP codes.
	

	53
	7/16/2012
	7/20/2012
	Tax Monthly Base- Can they provide an AFP code or definition?
	Please refer to question #26 above for a sample statement with AFP codes.
	

	54
	7/16/2012
	7/20/2012
	Wire International –US or Foreign $?
	Please refer to question #26 above for a sample statement with AFP codes.
	

	55
	7/16/2012
	7/20/2012
	Copy of June Custodial and/or Safekeeping Analysis
	Out of scope for this RFP.
	

	56
	7/17/2012
	7/20/2012
	What ATM's are in place at the Seattle Municipal Tower and City Hall at this time?   

	Seattle Municipal Tower (SMT): There is a Key Bank ATM and a Seattle Municipal Credit Union (SMCU) ATM in public lobby areas.  There is also an ATM within a small convenience store on the 3rd floor 
City Hall: No ATM at City Hall at this time.
	

	57
	7/17/2012
	7/20/2012
	Are the existing ATM's tied to contracts with the City? If so, what are the expiration dates? 

	Key Bank, as a tenant has the right to have an ATM for the term of their lease, which expires 11/30/2016.

The SMCU ATM is permitted by the lease for the SMCU space in City Hall that expires at the end of this year.

	

	58
	7/17/2012
	7/20/2012
	Will there be restrictions on the locations of our ATM's in the 2 locations in the RFP?
	Please see response #21

	

	59
	7/17/2012
	7/20/2012
	Would the new U.S. Bank Machines replace any/all of the existing machines? 

	They could replace machines when the existing agreements expired.
	

	60
	7/18/2012
	7/24/12
	Provide the annual amount collected from parking meters.

	2011 - $3,898,638.04

	

	61
	7/18/2012
	7/24/12
	What percentage of coins collected are coins other than nickels, dimes, quarters?
	It varies but on average, approximately 5% are dollar coins, and cents are negligible

	

	62
	7/18/2012
	7/24/12
	What are the dimensions and weight of the collection containers?
	We use three types of locked containers.
a. 10” X 7” X 6”
b. 7” X 9” X 10”
c. 15” X 10” X 8”

The exact weigh is not known – but they are small and the weight of the canister is not critical since all coin is dumped into a bin by the collectors
	

	63
	7/18/2012
	7/24/12
	Is the vendor required to unlock the container with a key?   
	No, the vendor makes the keys available to the Collector who will unlock the Containers and dump the contents. The vendor is not allowed to assist in any way.

	

	64
	7/18/2012
	7/24/12
	What is the process for key distribution to the armored supplier?  
	Three separate keys are provided and retained by the armored supplier, to be made available to the Collector to unlock the collection cans.

	

	65
	7/18/2012
	7/24/12
	What is the process for a lost key?
	Lost and/or broken keys are reported to the Collections Supervisor as soon as noted. Normally, Collectors notify the Supervisor if the vendor’s copy is bent, cracked or difficult to use.

	

	66
	7/18/2012
	7/24/12
	Is the armored supplier required to participate in a key audit?  If so, what is the frequency and process?
	No.

	

	67
	7/18/2012
	7/24/12
	What is the process for transporting parking meter coin to the vendor?

	Marked City of Seattle vans transport the coin to the vendor.

	

	68
	7/18/2012
	7/24/12
	What is the frequency for transporting parking meter coin to the vendor?
	Once daily for each collection van, but every now and then only one or two vans are used to transport the coin. This is due to staff time off, weather conditions, limited number of collection cans, etc. The vendor will be notified if less than three vehicles will be arriving, or will be late.
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Contract 3024


Bank Depository Services Insurance Revision.




23 Insurance and Bonds

Except as specified otherwise, Bank shall obtain at time of award and maintain in force, minimum coverages and limits of liability of insurance and bond specified below.  If the Bank fails to obtain or maintain these coverages, the City may withdraw its intent to award.  All costs are borne by the Bank.


1.
MINIMUM COVERAGES AND LIMITS OF LIABILITY. Bank shall at all times during the term of this Agreement maintain continuously, at its own expense, minimum insurance and bond coverages and limits of liability as specified below:


A.
Commercial General Liability (CGL) insurance, including:





- Premises/Operations






- Products/Completed Operations





- Personal/Advertising Injury





- Contractual 





- Independent Contractors 




- Stop Gap/Employers Liability


with minimum limits of liability of $1,000,000 each occurrence combined single limit bodily injury and property damage (“CSL”), except:





$1,000,000    Personal/Advertising Injury





$1,000,000    each accident/disease/employee Stop Gap/Employer’s 



         Liability

B.
   Financial Institution Bond on Standard Form No. 24 with minimum limits of 


   $100,000,000, including:





- Insuring Agreement  A – Fidelity Coverage, including Computer Fraud





- Insuring Agreement  B – On Premises





- Insuring Agreement  C – In-Transit





- Insuring Agreement  D – Forgery or Alteration, including Extended 






    Forgery; Voice Initiated Transfers; Counterfeit 








    Money and Money Orders


- Insuring Agreement  E – Securities, including Fraudulent Data Entry or 



   Program Changes Rider (SR6149); Extortion





   Rider (SR 5935); Trading Loss Coverage Rider 





   (SR6027)

C.
Automobile Liability insurance, including coverage for owned, non-owned, leased or hired vehicles with a minimum limit of liability of $1,000,000 CSL.


D.
 Worker’s Compensation for industrial injury to Bank’s employees in accordance with the provisions of Title 51 of the Revised Code of Washington. 


2.
CITY AS ADDITIONAL INSURED.  The City of Seattle shall be included as an additional insured under CGL and Automobile Liability insurance for primary and non-contributory limits of liability.


3.
PROFESSIONAL LIABILITY ERRORS AND OMISSIONS, with coverage of not less than $1 million per occurrence


4.
NO LIMITATION OF LIABILITY.  The limits of liability specified herein in subparagraph 1.A. and 1.C. are minimum limits of liability only and shall not be deemed to limit the liability of Bank or any Bank insurer except as respects the stated limit of liability of each policy.  Where required to be an additional insured, the City of Seattle shall be so for the full limits of liability maintained by Bank, whether such limits are primary, excess, contingent or otherwise.


5.
MINIMUM SECURITY REQUIREMENT.  All insurers must be rated A- VII or higher in the current A.M. Best's Key Rating Guide and licensed to do business in the State of Washington unless coverage is issued as surplus lines by a Washington Surplus lines broker.


6.
SELF-INSURANCE.  Any self-insured retention not fronted by an insurer must be disclosed.  Any defense costs or claim payments falling within a self-insured retention shall be the responsibility of Bank.


7.
EVIDENCE OF COVERAGE. Prior to performance of any scope of work under paragraph 5., Bank shall provide certification of insurance and bond acceptable to the City evidencing the minimum coverages and limits of liability and other requirements specified herein.  Such certification must include a copy of the policy provision documenting that the City of Seattle is an additional insured for commercial general liability insurance on a primary and non-contributory basis.  Certification should be issued to The City of Seattle, Risk Management Division, Seattle, WA and shall be delivered in electronic form either as an email attachment to riskmanagement@seattle.gov or faxed to (206) 470-1270.
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City of Seattle RFP #FAS-3022


Title: City of Seattle Banking Services


MINIMUM QUALIFICATIONS-A

Section 2 of the RFP


Please describe exactly how you achieve each Minimum Qualification. As provided in Section 2 of RFP 3022. Attach proof of any license and/or certification, if applicable. The determination that you have achieved all the minimum qualification is made from this document or a document with the same information, including attachments or exhibits to support the Vendor’s compliance of the mandatory requirements.



		Item #

		 Mandatory Requirements

		Meets Mandatory Qualifications




		Describe How You Meet The Mandatory Requirements.



		

		

		YES

		NO

		



		2.1

		The Financial Institution shall have a minimum of 10 years experience as an Originating Depository Financial Institution (ODFI).

		

		

		



		2.2

		The Financial Institution shall conform to National Automated Clearing House Association (NACHA) rules.

		

		

		



		2.3

		The Financial Institution shall have legal authority to offer banking services by charter from either the US Government or the State of Washington.




		

		

		



		2.4

		The Financial Institution must be insured by the Federal Deposit Insurance Corporation (FDIC).



		

		

		



		2.5

		The Financial Institution shall have a main branch within the corporate limits of the City of Seattle, Washington capable of providing all banking services required in this proposal. Ancillary services, such as messenger service, coin counting, etc., may be provided by approved subcontract.



		

		

		



		2.6

		The Financial Institution shall have a total minimum capital structure of at least $450 $300 million, (as calculated by the Washington Public Deposit Protection Commission), be able to support a deposit by the City in amounts up to $450 million, and daylight overdrafts up to $120 million. Proposing financial institutions must, at the time of submittal of a proposal, be in compliance with all applicable laws, rules, regulations, and ordinances of the City of Seattle, the State of Washington, and the United States, including the Washington State Public Deposit Protection Act (RCW 39.58).  



		

		

		



		2.7

		Each proposal must include the bank's latest public depositor's consolidated report of condition filed with the Washington Public Deposit Protection Commission as evidence of its ability to meet the capital structure requirements stated above.



		

		

		



		2.8

		The Financial Institution shall provide same day availability of deposited funds drawn on banks within the 12th Federal District to the City of Seattle.



		

		

		



		2.9

		The Financial Institution shall have a rating of “Outstanding” on its most recent Community Reinvestment Act review by the Office of the US Comptroller of the Currency or the US Federal Reserve Bank. This rating would be provided by the agency of jurisdiction.
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SERVICE DETAIL


Svc


Code


AFP


Code


Service


Description


Unit


Price Volume


Service


Charges


FDIC 00  0230 DEP INSURANCE ASSESSMENT MTHLY 0 00000 6,817 58 0 00 


  BALANCE & COMPENSATION INFORMATION 0.00 


12602 01  0310 ARP STATEMENT - FREQUENT CYCLE 20 00000 1 00 20 00 


22810 01  9999 NON ACCT HOLDER CHK CASHING - FULL 2 50000 5 00 12 50 


22814 01  9999 PAYEE VALID NON ACCT HLDER-CHK CASH 0 00000 118 00 0 00 


32040 01  0000 WELLSTAX ACCESS CODE MONTHLY BASE 2 00000 7 00 14 00 


32045 01  0000 WELLSTAX MONTHLY BASE - PC 5 00000 7 00 35 00 


CK001 01  0000 ACCOUNT MAINTENANCE W/ CHK RETURN 9 00000 7 00 63 00 


DS585 01  0021 SUBACCOUNT MAINTENANCE 2 00000 1 00 2 00 


22051 01  0000 ACCOUNT MAINTENANCE-CHEXSTOR 4 00000 10 00 40 00 


ZBABC 01  0021 ZERO BALANCE MONTHLY BASE 3 00000 3 00 9 00 


CK021 01  0100 DEBITS POSTED 0 05000 445 00 22 25 


CK011 01  0101 CREDITS POSTED 0 20000 3,572 00 714 40 


CK191 01  0310 DDA STATEMENT - FREQUENT CYCLE 1 00000 4 00 4 00 


CK183 01  0320 DDA STATEMENT - SPECIAL INSTRUCTION 1 00000 17 00 17 00 


21507 01  0101 CONT DISB CREDIT POSTED-OH 0 00000 21 00 0 00 


  GENERAL ACCOUNT SERVICES 953.15 


CVBSE 10  0100 CASH VAULT MONTHLY BASE 0 00000 99 00 0 00 


VLTRT 10  0199 CASH VAULT RETN DUP DEPOSIT TICKET 0 00000 88 00 0 00 


08071 10  0111 CASH VAULT COIN DEP-PARTIAL/MIX BAG 3 25000 82 00 266 50 


08110 10  0144 CASH VAULT COIN FURNISHED - ROLLED 0 20000 288 00 57 60 


08115 10  0146 CASH VAULT COIN FURNISHED-STD BOX 3 00000 2 00 6 00 


08129 10  0105 CASH VAULT NONVERIFIED ENVELOPES/$1 0 00150 270,688 00 406 03 


08160 10  0501 CASH VAULT DEPOSIT ADJUSTMENT 5 00000 11 00 55 00 


08188 10  0142 CASH VAULT CASH ORDER-STANDING INST 2 50000 39 00 97 50 


08189 10  0141 CASH VAULT CASH ORDER-TOUCHTONE 2 50000 1 00 2 50 


08290 10  0199 CASH VAULT CURRENCY/COIN DEPOSITED 0 00040 3,104,665 00 1,241 87 


08400 10  0148 CASH VAULT CURRENCY FURN-NONSTD 0 00100 12,600 00 12 60 


08416 10  0199 CASH VAULT CURRENCY FURNISHED 0 00050 54,600 00 27 30 


08631 10  0101 CASH VAULT COIN DEPOSIT- BIN 160 00000 21 00 3,360 00 


12707 10  0610 DEPOSIT LOCATION REPORTING - ITEM 0 01000 3,632 00 36 32 


001 10  0220 DEPOSITED CHECKS - ON US 0 03000 192 00 5 76 


085 10  0222 DEPOSITED CHECKS - LOCAL CLEARING 0 03500 837 00 29 30 


003 10  0225 DEPOSITED CHECKS - REGIONAL 0 05000 542 00 27 10 


006 10  0224 DEPOSITED CHECKS - TRANSIT 0 06000 150 00 9 00 


401 10  0210 ENCODED CHECKS - ON US 0 01500 12,771 00 191 57 


452 10  0212 ENCODED CHECKS - LOCAL CLEARING 0 02000 62,213 00 1,244 26 


403 10  0213 ENCODED CHECKS - REGIONAL 0 03500 27,656 00 967 96 


406 10  0214 ENCODED CHECKS - TRANSIT 0 04000 10,430 00 417 20 


721 10  0220 REMOTE CASH VAULT-WFARGO DEP CHECKS 0 09500 1,768 00 167 97 


726 10  0224 REMOTE CASH VAULT-NON WF DEP CHECKS 0 12500 13,161 00 1,645 13 


741 10  0220 ELECTRONIC DEPOSIT - CHECK WFB 0 02500 2 00 0 05 


746 10  0224 ELECTRONIC DEPOSIT - CHECK NON WFB 0 02500 20 00 0 50 


CK161 10  0015 CASH DEP/$1 VER AT TELLER WINDOW 0 00060 283,025 64 169 81 


CK199 10  0015 CASH DEP/$1 POST VERIFY IN STORE 0 00060 3,562 37 2 14 


CK061 10  0400 RETURN ITEM - CHARGEBACK 1 00000 201 00 201 00 


CK062 10  0414 CEO RETURN ITEM RETRIEVAL-IMAGE 2 00000 1 00 2 00 


CK064 10  0414 CEO RETURN ITEM SERVICE MTHLY BASE 0 00000 1 00 0 00 


CK069 10  0400 RETURN ITEM SPECIAL INSTRUCTIONS 0 20000 201 00 40 20 


CK081 10  0401 RETURN ITEM SPECIAL INST MTHLY BASE 0 00000 2 00 0 00 


CK075 10  0402 RETURN ITEM REDEPOSITED 0 50000 189 00 94 50 


  DEPOSITORY SERVICES 10,784.67 


34336 15  0723 POSITIVE PAY EXCEPTION - CEO IMAGE 1 00000 17 00 17 00 


PABSE 15  0240 PYMT AUTH MAX CHECK MTHLY BASE 0 00000 5 00 0 00 


12217 15  0100 ARP CHECKS PAID - FULL RECON 0 04000 3,143 00 125 72 


12631 15  1100 ARP SERIAL SORT-PER ITEM 0 08000 3 00 0 24 


12670 15  0410 STOP PAYMENT - ONLINE 3 50000 20 00 70 00 


12671 15  0420 STOP PAYMENT - OPERATOR ASSISTED 9 00000 7 00 63 00 


12812 15  1352 ONLINE IMAGE VIEW < 90 DAYS - ITEM 0 50000 12 00 6 00 


12815 15  1352 ONLINE IMAGE VIEW > 90 DAYS - ITEM 0 50000 6 00 3 00 
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12900 15  1358 POSITIVE PAY MONTHLY BASE - BASIC 0 00000 1 00 0 00 


12907 15  0030 POSITIVE PAY MONTHLY BASE 0 00000 3 00 0 00 


22020 15  1350 WELLSIMAGE PAID CHECK MONTHLY BASE 0 00000 1 00 0 00 


34210 15  0700 CEO CONT DISB SUBSCRIPTION BASE 0 00000 1 00 0 00 


22015 15  1353 WELLSIMAGE PAID CHECK PER CD 5 00000 1 00 5 00 


22019 15  1353 WELLSIMAGE PAID CHECK DELUXE-ITEM 0 01000 2,625 00 26 25 


22068 15  9999 CHECKS RETURNED W/STATEMENT-ITEM 0 06000 684 00 41 04 


22202 15  0100 DDA CHECKS PAID 0 04000 706 00 28 24 


CEOCD 15  0700 CEO CONT DISB SUBSCRIPTION BASE 10 00000 1 00 10 00 


27707 15  0400 CEO SEARCH 0 25000 52 00 13 00 


DS191 15  0299 PAYEE VALIDATION STANDARD-ITEM 0 02000 12,691 00 253 82 


22642 15  1100 DDA SERIAL SORT - ITEM 0 00000 261 00 0 00 


DS501 15  1199 DDA SERIAL SORT MONTHLY BASE 0 00000 4 00 0 00 


DS255 15  1399 WELLSIMAGE PAID CHECK PER ITEM 0 01000 15,190 00 151 90 


DS728 15  1100 ARP SERIAL SORT MONTHLY BASE 25 00000 1 00 25 00 


21501 15  0000 CONT DISB ACCT MAINT W/CHEXSTOR-OH 15 00000 1 00 15 00 


21509 15  0110 CONT DISB IMAGE CHECKS PAID - OH 0 04000 12,691 00 507 64 


21550 15  0300 CONT DISB PERFECT-POS-PAY EXCEPT-OH 0 40000 1 00 0 40 


21551 15  0030 CONT DISB PERFECT PRESENT BASE-OH 0 00000 1 00 0 00 


22030 15  0412 STOP PAYMENT - AUTO RENEWAL 0 30000 165 00 49 50 


  PAPER DISBURSEMENT SERVICES 1,411.75 


34337 20  0200 ARP REGISTER INPUT CEO - ITEM 0 05000 701 00 35 05 


12060 20  0010 ARP MONTHLY BASE - FULL 10 00000 5 00 50 00 


12061 20  0020 ARP MONTHLY BASE - PARTIAL 10 00000 1 00 10 00 


12216 20  9999 ARP CHECKS RETURNED W/STATEMENT-ITM 0 25000 5 00 1 25 


12377 20  0201 ARP FULL RECON-ITEM 0 02000 16,434 00 328 68 


12430 20  0301 ARP OUTPUT - TRANSMISSION 5 25000 42 00 220 50 


12604 20  0310 ARP OPTIONAL REPORTS 7 25000 84 00 609 00 


12609 20  0329 ARP PAPER STATEMENT DELIVERY 5 00000 7 00 35 00 


12684 20  0310 ARP PAPER STMT/REPORT MONTHLY BASE 0 00000 6 00 0 00 


12687 20  9999 ARP AGED ISSUE RECORDS ON FILE-ITEM 0 00000 2,956 00 0 00 


34350 20  0305 ARP STATEMENT MONTHLY BASE CEO 0 00000 7 00 0 00 


  PAPER DISBURSEMENT RECON SERVICES 1,289.48 


34330 25  0703 ACH CEO SUBSCRIPTION - ACCOUNT 0 00000 1 00 0 00 


CEOAS 25  0703 ACH CEO SUBSCRIPTION - ACCOUNT 30 00000 1 00 30 00 


CK018 25  0201 ELECTRONIC CREDITS POSTED 0 05000 3,052 00 152 60 


ACHBS 25  0000 ACH MONTHLY BASE 35 00000 4 00 140 00 


ES283 25  0000 ACH VENDOR MONTHLY BASE 0 00000 1 00 0 00 


ES211 25  0102 ACH ONE DAY ITEM 0 02000 38,006 00 760 12 


ES210 25  0102 ACH TWO DAY ITEM 0 02000 44,283 00 885 66 


ES206 25  0120 ACH ORIGINATED - ADDENDA REC 0 01500 717 00 10 76 


ES344 25  0202 ACH RECEIVED ITEM 0 03000 436 00 13 08 


ES251 25  0302 ACH RETURN ITEM - FAX ADVICE 3 00000 16 00 48 00 


ES256 25  0302 ACH RETURN ITEM - MAIL ADVICE 3 00000 66 00 198 00 


ES323 25  0501 ACH TRANSMISSION CHARGE 3 00000 68 00 204 00 


ES237 25  0710 ACH FAX SERVICE 0 00000 131 00 0 00 


ES235 25  0710 ACH MAIL SERVICE 0 00000 57 00 0 00 


ES250 25  0302 ACH RETURN ITEM-TRANSMISSION ADVICE 1 00000 359 00 359 00 


ES230 25  0620 ACH DELETE - ITEM 10 00000 9 00 90 00 


ES361 25  0642 ACH REVERSAL - ITEM 10 00000 1 00 10 00 


ACH1D 25  0102 INTERNET ACH ONE DAY ITEM 0 02000 206 00 4 12 


ACH2D 25  0102 INTERNET ACH TWO DAY ITEM 0 02000 20 00 0 40 


34377 25  0000 INTERNET ACH BASE FEE 5 00000 1 00 5 00 


34378 25  0500 INTERNET ACH BATCH RELEASE 3 00000 20 00 60 00 


ES342 25  0720 ACH CUSTOMER REPORTS 0 10000 1 00 0 10 


ES339 25  1010 ACH SPECIAL INVESTIGATION 25 00000 1 00 25 00 


CEOAF 25  1050 ACH CEO FRAUD FILTER REVIEW MO BASE 5 00000 19 00 95 00 


34333 25  1050 ACH CEO FRAUD FILTER REVIEW MO BASE 0 00000 19 00 0 00 


34335 25  1053 ACH CEO FRAUD FILTER REVIEW - ITEM 7 00000 5 00 35 00 


ES363 25  0302 ACH NOC - TRANSMISSION ADVICE 1 50000 22 00 33 00 


ES371 25  1070 ACH WELLS FARGO NOC - TRANS ADVICE 2 25000 1 00 2 25 


ES392 25  1070 ACH WELLS FARGO NOC - MAIL ADVICE 2 35000 1 00 2 35 


ES480 25  1070 ACH NOC - FAX ADVICE 3 00000 30 00 90 00 


ES486 25  0302 ACH NOC - MAIL ADVICE 3 00000 7 00 21 00 


  GENERAL ACH SERVICES 3,274.44 


CEOED 30  0524 CEO TREAS INFO RPT EDI SUBSC MOBASE 5 00000 1 00 5 00 


34240 30  0524 CEO TREAS INFO RPT EDI SUBSC MOBASE 0 00000 1 00 0 00 
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34242 30  0524 CEO TREASURY INFO REPTING-EDI ITEM 0 50000 997 00 498 50 


34245 30  0524 CEO TREAS INFO RPT EDI ADDENDA 0 07000 554 00 38 78 


  EDI PAYMENT SERVICES 542.28 


18030 35  9999 WIRE IN REPAIR SURCHARGE 6 00000 1 00 6 00 


ES167 35  9999 WIRE SECURITY MONTHLY BASE 0 00000 4 00 0 00 


ES030 35  0300 WIRE IN DOMESTIC 6 00000 76 00 456 00 


ES076 35  0310 WIRE IN - INTERNATIONAL 14 00000 3 00 42 00 


ES139 35  0104 WIRE-OUTGOING DOMESTIC-CEO 6 00000 95 00 570 00 


ES141 35  0124 WIRE - BOOK TRANSFER - CEO 1 00000 2 00 2 00 


ES147 35  0113 WIRE - OUTGOING INT'L USD - CEO 20 00000 1 00 20 00 


  WIRE & OTHER FUNDS TRANSFER SERVICE 1,096.00 


22990 40  1001 PHOTOCOPY CUSTOMER SERVICE - ITEM 5 00000 10 00 50 00 


WNIDB 40  0003 CEO INTRADAY SUBSCRIPTION MTHLYBASE 12 00000 4 00 48 00 


WNPDB 40  0000 CEO PREV DAY SUBSCRIPTION MTHLYBASE 12 00000 14 00 168 00 


34100 40  0000 CEO PREV DAY SUBSCRIPTION MTHLYBASE 0 00000 14 00 0 00 


34115 40  0001 CEO PREV DAY SUBSCRIPTION DETL ITEM 0 02000 24,845 00 496 90 


34120 40  0003 CEO INTRADAY SUBSCRIPTION MTHLYBASE 0 00000 4 00 0 00 


34121 40  0224 CEO INTRADAY SUBSCRIPTION - ITEM 0 03000 7,165 00 214 95 


34251 40  0800 ELECTRONIC WINDOW EXTENDED STOR 60 0 01500 259 00 3 89 


  INFORMATION SERVICES 981.74 


CS030 45  0020 SWEEP STAGECOACH INVEST MTHLY BASE 45 00000 1 00 45 00 


CS031 45  0403 SWEEP STAGECOACH INVEST ELECTRONIC 0 00000 22 00 0 00 


  INVESTMENT/CUSTODY SERVICES 45.00 


IL152 60  9999 DEPOSITED CHECK CANADIAN 1 00000 16 00 16 00 


  INTERNATIONAL SERVICES 16.00 


   Total Analyzed Charges 20,394 51 


* Total Fee Based Charges 0.00 


   Total Service Charges 20,394 51 


TREND ANALYSIS


Month


Average


Ledger


Balance


Average Positive


Collected


Balance


Investable


Balance


Available


for Services


Earnings


Credit


Rate


Earnings


Allowance


Fee Based


Charges


Analyzed


Charges


Monthly


Position
JAN 2012  5,513,376 1,819,945 1,819,945 0.20 % 308 0 18,384 (18,075)


FEB 2012  6,042,657 1,723,791 1,723,791 0.20 % 273 0 21,507 (21,234)


MAR 2012  6,393,792 2,123,598 2,123,598 0.20 % 360 0 20,590 (20,230)


APR 2012  6,479,013 2,148,110 2,148,110 0.20 % 352 0 19,505 (19,153)


MAY 2012  7,862,425 2,207,386 2,207,386 0.20 % 374 0 23,660 (23,286)


JUN 2012  6,817,557 2,501,367 2,501,367 0.20 % 410 0 20,395 (19,984)


______ ______ ______
AVG 6,518,137 2,087,366 2,087,366


Note: Customer must examine this statement and report to Bank any claim for credit or refund within 30 days after Bank makes the statement available If Bank does not receive notice of error or


discrepancy within this time frame, items on the statement will be deemed to be correct
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ARP Statement:


New WF Bank


Upload of the Positive Payment file:


-  Transmission sign-on record fields


1-5 $$ADD


6 space


7-9 ID=


10-17 remote ID


18 space


19-22 BID=


23-48 batch ID


49-80 spaces


-  Transmission account header record fields


1-3 *03


4-8 Bank ID


9-23 Account number


24 File status


25-80 spaces


-  Detail record fields


1-10 Check number


11-16 Issue date


17-26 Account number


27-29 Transaction code (check or cancel)


30-39 Amount


40-80 Additional Data


-  Transmission account trailer record fields


1 &


2-15 spaces


16-20 Detail record count


21-23 spaces


24-33 Total amount


34-80 spaces 


Download of the Redeems file:


-  Header record fields


1-2 H1


3 space


4-13 Account number


14-16 Report identifier (R12, Paid Check Report  or R14, Unpaid Check Report)


17-22 Report print date


23-28 Report begin date


29-34 Report end date


35-80 paces


-  Detail record fields


1-3 Report identifier (R12 or R14)


4-13 Check number


14-16 Transaction (for R12, 057 check), (for R14, 055 stop payment, 370 cancel, 320 check register, etc.)


17-22 Issue date


23-32 Amount


33-38 Paid date


39-80 Additional data


-  Trailer record fields


1-2 T1


3 space


4-9 Total credit count


10 space


11-21 Total credit amount


22-23 spaces


24-29 Total debit count


30 space


31-41 Total debit amount


42-80 spaces
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2011 INSURANCE REQUIREMENTS AND TRANSMITTAL SHEET 

PURCHASING SERVICES
REF:    FAS-3022   

City of Seattle


Attachment No. 1

VENDOR: SEND THIS FORM TO YOUR INSURANCE PROFESSIONAL

INSURANCE AGENT/BROKER: 

( PLEASE COMPLETE THESE FIELDS SO THAT WE MAY CONTACT YOU IF NECESSARY.                 *REQUIRED FIELDS


*NAME:      


TITLE:      


*NAME OF COMPANY         


*EMAIL:      

*TELEPHONE:      

FAX:        

( SEND ORIGINAL CERTIFICATION WITH COPY OF CGL ADDITIONAL INSURED ENDORSEMENT OR BLANKET ADDITIONAL   INSURED POLICY WORDING TO:
THE CITY OF SEATTLE PURCHASING SERVICES DIVISION

                                      

ATTN: Carmalinda Vargas

 





PO Box 94687

                                       

SEATTLE, WA 98124-4678

( SEND COPY OF CERTIFICATION (INCLUDING COPY OF ADDITIONAL INSURED PROVISION) BY FAX TO (206) 470-1279 OR AS AN EMAIL ATTACHMENT IN ADOBE PDF FORMAT TO RISKMANAGEMENT@SEATTLE.GOV .


1. In the “Certificate Holder” field of the certificate of insurance, write “Attention:City of Seattle FORMTEXT 
.” 

2. Upon award of the contract, Vendor shall, at its sole expense and for the entire term of the contract, provide insurance to the City of Seattle (“City”) as checked below in 10 days or the city may withdraw its intent to award:

· ( COMMERCIAL GENERAL LIABILITY (CGL) INSURANCE OR EQUIVALENT INCLUDING: 


( PREMISES 


( PRODUCTS-COMPLETED OPERATIONS 



( CONTRACTUAL LIABILITY  



( STOP GAP/EMPLOYER’S LIABILITY (UNLESS NO OBLIGATION TO INSURE WA STATE WC)

  FORMCHECKBOX 
  XCU AND SUBSIDENCE PERILS NOT EXCLUDED

  FORMCHECKBOX 
 PRODUCTS/COMPLETED OPNS. ADD’L INSURED FOR THREE (3) YEARS FOLLOWING END OF CONTRACT

· MINIMUM LIMITS OF LIABILITY SHALL BE:   


		    $1,000,000

		EACH OCCURRENCE COMBINED SINGLE LIMIT BODILY INJURY AND PROPERTY DAMAGE (CSL)



		    $2,000,000   

		PRODUCTS/COMPLETED OPERATIONS AGGREGATE



		    $2,000,000   

		GENERAL AGGREGATE



		    $1,000,000   

		EACH ACCIDENT/ DISEASE—POLICY LIMIT/ DISEASE—EACH EMPLOYEE STOP GAP/EMPLOYER’S LIABILITY 







( FINANCIAL INSTITUTION BOND ON STANDARD FORM NO. 24 




MINIMUM LIMITS OF LIABILITY SHALL BE $100,000,000 including: 


· Insuring Agreement A – Fidelity Coverage, including Computer Fraud


· Insuring Agreement B – On Premises


· Insuring Agreement C – In-Transit


· Insuring Agreement D – Forgery or Alteration, including Extended Forgery; Voice Initiated Transfers; Counterfeit Money and Money Orders


· Insuring Agreement E – Securities, including Fraudulent Data Entry or Program Changes Rider (SR6149); Extortion Rider (SR5935); Trading Loss Coverage Rider (SR6027)


(  AUTOMOBILE LIABILITY INSURANCE FOR OWNED, NON-OWNED AND HIRED VEHICLES AS APPROPRIATE   INCLUDING: 


 FORMCHECKBOX 
 IN-TRANSIT POLLUTION LIABILITY CA 99 48/MCS-90 (N/A IF COVERED UNDER AN IN-TRANSIT EXTENSION OF A CONTRACTOR’S POLLUTION LIABILITY INSURANCE POLICY)


· MINIMUM LIMITS OF LIABILITY SHALL BE $1,000,000 CSL.

·  FORMCHECKBOX 
  MARINE GENERAL LIABILITY (MGL) INSURANCE INCLUDING: PREMISES/COMPLETED OPERATIONS, PRODUCTS LIABILITY, WORK IN PROGRESS, CONTRACTUAL LIABILITY AND STOP GAP/EMPLOYER’S LIABILITY.  MINIMUM LIMITS OF LIABILITY SHALL BE:  

		   1,000,000

		CSL



		   2,000,000

		PRODUCTS/COMPLETED OPERATIONS AGGREGATE



		   2,000,000

		GENERAL AGGREGATE



		   1,000,000

		EACH ACCIDENT/ DISEASE—POLICY LIMIT/ DISEASE—EACH EMPLOYEE STOP GAP/EMPLOYER’S 

LIABILITY 





 FORMCHECKBOX 
  UMBRELLA/EXCESS/BUMBERSHOOT LIABILITY INSURANCE OVER CGL/MGL/AUTOMOBILE LIABILITY  

MINIMUM LIMIT OF LIABILITY SHALL BE $      EACH CLAIM EXCESS OF PRIMARY LIMITS ($      MINIMUM TOTAL LIMITS REQUIREMENT)


 FORMCHECKBOX 
  PROFESSIONAL LIABILITY INSURANCE

MINIMUM LIMIT OF LIABILITY SHALL BE $      EACH CLAIM

 FORMCHECKBOX 
   CONTRACTOR’S POLLUTION LIABILITY INSURANCE 

MINIMUM LIMITS OF LIABILITY SHALL BE $      EACH CLAIM WITH A MINIMUM AGGREGATE LIMIT OF 200% OF THE EACH CLAIM LIMIT.  THERE SHALL BE NO REQUIREMENT FOR A DEDICATED PROJECT AGGREGATE LIMIT PROVIDED THAT THE CONTRACTOR SHALL (1) SUBMIT TO THE CITY WITH ITS INSURANCE CERTIFICATION A WRITTEN STATEMENT FROM ITS AUTHORIZED INSURANCE REPRESENTATIVE THAT THE FULL MINIMUM AGGREGATE LIMIT IS AVAILABLE AND HAS NOT BEEN IMPAIRED BY ANY CLAIMS RESERVED ON ANOTHER PROJECT, AND (2) THEREAFTER, UNTIL THE COMPLETION OF THE WORK, THE CONTRACTOR SHALL PROVIDE NOTICE IN WRITING TO THE CITY WITHIN TEN (10) DAYS OF CONTRACTOR’S CONSTRUCTIVE KNOWLEDGE OF ANY PENDING OR ACTUAL IMPAIRMENT OF THE AGGREGATE LIMIT.


 FORMCHECKBOX 
   SHIP REPAIRER’S OR MARINA OPERATOR’S LEGAL LIABILITY INSURANCE COVERING THE VENDOR’S LIABILITY FOR LOSS OR DAMAGE, INCLUDING LOSS OF USE, TO OWNERS OF WATERCRAFT WHILE IN THE VENDOR’S CARE, CUSTODY AND CONTROL FOR THE PURPOSE OF BEING REPAIRED OR SERVICED.  


MINIMUM LIMITS OF LIABILITY SHALL BE $      EACH VESSEL

 FORMCHECKBOX 
   WATERCRAFT LIABILITY OR JONES ACT LIABILITY INSURANCE 


MINIMUM LIMITS OF LIABILITY SHALL BE $     

 FORMCHECKBOX 
   U.S.L. & H. ACT WORKER’S COMPENSATION LIABILITY INSURANCE

MINIMUM LIMITS OF LIABILITY SHALL BE $     

 FORMCHECKBOX 
  BUILDER’S RISK PROPERTY INSURANCE

 MINIMUM LIMITS OF LIABILITY SHALL BE $     

 FORMCHECKBOX 
  MISCELLANEOUS:       


 MINIMUM LIMIT:  $       

TERMS AND CONDITIONS:

1. City of Seattle as Additional Insured: The CGL/MGL insurance shall include “the City of Seattle” as an additional insured for primary and non-contributory limits of liability.


2. No Limitation of Liability: Insurance coverage and limits of liability as specified herein are minimum coverage and limit of liability requirements only.  They shall not be construed to limit the liability of Vendor or any insurer for any claim that is required to be covered hereunder to less than the applicable limits of liability stated in the declarations.  Moreover, the City shall be an additional insured, where additional insured status is required, for the full available limits of liability maintained by vendor, whether those limits are primary, excess, contingent or otherwise.  Vendor expressly understands and agrees that this provision shall override any limitation of liability or similar provision in any agreement or statement of work between the City and Vendor.


3. Claims Made Form:  If any policy is written on a claims made form, the retroactive date shall be prior to or coincident with the effective date of this contract.  Claims made coverage shall be maintained by the Vendor for a minimum of three (3) years following the expiration or earlier termination of this contract, and the Vendor shall provide the City with evidence of insurance for each annual renewal.  If renewal of the claims made form of coverage becomes unavailable or economically prohibitive, the Vendor shall purchase an extended reporting period (“tail”) or execute another form of guarantee acceptable to the City to assure financial responsibility for liability assumed under the contract.


4. Deductibles and Self-Insured Retentions:  Any self-insurance retention or deductible in excess of $ 25,000 that is not “fronted” by an insurer and for which claims the vendor or its third-party administrator is directly responsible for defending and indemnifying must be disclosed on the certificate of liability insurance.  Vendor agrees to defend and indemnify the City under its self-insured or deductible layer and upon City’s request advise the full delivery address of the individual or department to whom a tender of a claim should be directed.   


5. Notice of Cancellation:   Under RCW 48.18.290 (1) (a) and (b) (“Cancellation by insurer”) applicable to insurers licensed to do business in the State of Washington, the City, as a certificate holder for the insurance requirements specified herein and an additional insured, has an interest in any loss which may occur; written notice of cancellation must therefore be actually delivered or mailed to the City not less than 45 days prior to cancellation (10 days as respects non-payment of premium).  As respects surplus lines placements, written notice of cancellation shall be delivered not less than 30 days prior to cancellation (10 days as respects non-payment of premium).


6. Qualification of Insurers:  Insurers shall maintain A.M. Best’s ratings of A- VII unless procured as a surplus lines placement under RCW chapter 48.15, or as may otherwise be approved by the City.


7. Changes in Insurance Requirements: The City shall have the right to periodically review the adequacy of coverages and/or limits of liability in view of inflation and/or a change in loss exposures and shall have the right to require an increase in such coverages and/or limits upon ninety (90) days prior written notice to the Vendor.  Should Vendor, despite its best efforts, be unable to maintain any required insurance coverage or limit of liability due to deteriorating insurance market conditions, it may upon thirty (30) days prior written notice request a waiver of any insurance requirement, which request shall not be unreasonably denied.


8. Evidence of Insurance:  


a. A certificate of liability insurance evidencing overages, limits of liability, bond coverage, and other terms and conditions as specified herein;


b. An attached designated additional insured endorsement or blanket additional insured wording to the CGL/MGL and (if required) Contractor’s Pollution Liability insurance policy.


At any time upon the City’s request, Vendor shall also cause to be timely furnished a copy of declarations pages and schedules of forms and endorsements.  In the event that the City tenders a claim or lawsuit for defense and indemnity invoking additional insured status, and the insurer either denies the tender or issues a reservation of rights letter, Vendor shall in addition cause a complete and certified copy of the requested policy to be timely furnished.

Send evidence of insurance to the City at the addresses at the top of this form. If any questions or issues, contact the City of Seattle Risk Management Division at direct telephone extension (206) 386-0071 or by email at riskmanagement@seattle.gov .

NOTE: CERTIFICATES WITHOUT ATTACHED ADDITIONAL INSURED ENDORSEMENT OR BLANKET ADDITIONAL INSURED WORDING WILL NOT BE APPROVED![image: image1][image: image2][image: image3][image: image4][image: image5][image: image6]
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